
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – June 13, 2022   Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Date: June 13, 2022 

Place: In-Person / Headquarters -17520 – 22nd Ave E., Tacoma, WA   
 Virtual / (Visit www.centralpiercefire.org for instructions to join webinar) 

Time: 5:00 p.m. 

 
Citizens attending virtually that wish to address the Board during Public Comment use 
the “raise hand” feature on the webinar. Statements or comments for the record may 
be submitted to dporter@centralpiercefire.org by 4:00pm meeting day.  

             
 
1. Call to Order 

 

A. Roll Call 
 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

 

3. Approval of Agenda  
 

A. Pg 1 /Agenda 
 
 

4. Public Comment - (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
 

 

5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  
 

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Pg 3 /Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of May 23, 2022 
C. Pg 6 /Approval of:  

 
Pg 28 /For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling $3,722,410.50  

are included in Warrants noted above:  
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 12797 to 12852-$340,681.41 (Included in A/P Warrant 57470) 
 Employee EFT Contributions/Deductions including all taxes & retirement numbered 55125 to 

55443 - $2,340,729.36 (Included in A/P Warrant 57522) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 12856 to 12861-$892,836.49 (Included in A/P Warrant 57520) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 12862 to 12902-$148,163.24 (Included in A/P Warrant 57532) 

 
 

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action) 
 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57464 to 57518 totaling $ 435,131.09 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57519 to 57527 totaling $ 4,757,484.72 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107631 to 107636 totaling $ 76,811.00 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57528 to 57528 totaling $ 2,500 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57529 to 57549 totaling $ 182,977.33 

GRAND TOTAL $ 5,454,904.14 

1

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/
mailto:dporter@centralpiercefire.org


 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – June 13, 2022   Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

7. New Business (First Reading) 
 
 

8. Considerations and Requests 
 

A. Pg 63 /Insurance Interlocal Agreement Renewal – AC Stueve 
 
 

B. Pg 70 /Benaroya Property Lease – DC Karns 
 

 
 

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg 94 /Human Resources – HRD Washo 
 
 

B. Pg 96 /Training – AC Juarez 
 
 

C. Pg 97 /Field Operations – AC Kent  
 
 

D. Pg 98 /EMS – AC Bouchard  
 

 

E. Pg 99 /DC Operations – DC Stueve 
 
 

F. Pg 100 /Fire Chief’s Report – Chief Morrow 
 

10. Correspondence 
 

A. Pg 101 /Employee Recognition 
 

 

11. Commissioner Comments 
 

 

12. Adjournment 

2



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3                                                                                                   May 23, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

May 23, 2022 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central 
Pierce Fire & Rescue to order at District Headquarters – 17520 22nd Ave E., Tacoma at 
5:00 p.m. A remote attendance option was available to the public. Present were Chair 
Holm, Commissioners Stringfellow, Willis, Coleman, and Mitchell, Ex-Officio Door, Chief 
Morrow, HRD Washo, Assistant Chiefs Overby and Stueve, and Executive Assistant 
Porter, recorder. Local 726 President James was also present. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Commissioner Stringfellow led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve 
the agenda. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of May 9, 2022    
C. Approval of: 

 
Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Stringfellow seconded to approve the 
Consent Agenda with warrants totaling $232,769.63. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
No unfinished business. 
 
NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
No new business. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  

A. Commissioner Pay  
 
The Board discussed receiving the elected official’s daily per diem for Board packet 
review prior to each Board meeting. Commissioner Mitchell shared his previous 
experience on this topic. Chief Morrow confirmed with legal counsel that this is an 
allowable charge to the District. If approved, Staff will revise Policy 303 and the Board of 
Fire Commissioners Policy Manual to list Board Packet Review as “official district 
business” and, therefore, chargeable to the District. Commissioner Coleman moved and 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57422 to 57439 totaling $ 105,884.41 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 57440 to 57463 totaling $ 126,885.22 

GRAND TOTAL $ 232,769.63 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                   May 23, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

Commissioner Stringfellow seconded to modify the policy to include Board Packet 
Review as an approved per diem charge. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

B. Creation of Facilities Lead Pay Range  
 
The business needs of the District warrant an increase in the number and type of 
positions in the Logistics division. The District and Local 726 have executed a 
Memorandum of Understanding on this position’s creation and pay range. 
Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the 
addendum to the 726 Non-Uniformed 2021 Salary Schedule (“Appendix A”) effective 
April 14, 2022. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

 
A. Finance/FD Robacker.  

 
B. IT/ITD Scott-Ralston.  

 
C. Logistics/AC Stueve - Provided an update on Ladder 61 and Station 65 roof 

repair. Chair Holm passed on information that a citizen seeing a staff vehicle with 
Central Pierce signage was unaware that it was a fire department vehicle. 
Discussion followed on the importance of being visible in the community. AC 
Stueve appreciated the feedback and will address in the future. 

 
D. Prevention & Education/AC Overby - DFM Wohrle’s Certified Fire Marshal 

certification is not easy to achieve and quite an accomplishment. Chair Holm 
pointed out that this is AC Overby’s last meeting and thanked him for 30 years of 
dedicated service.  
 

E. Health & Safety/AC McKenzie. 
 

F. DC Administration/DC Karns.  
 

G. Fire Chief/Chief Morrow - Hoped that the Station 72 dirt issue was resolved, but 
that did not happen. He is still hoping for a resolution. Recent Battalion Level 
personnel meetings involved rich conversations and sharing. He left with a strong 
sense that they are committed to the pathway. Videos of the discussions will be 
made and shared with the Board. Chair Holm has heard good comments about 
the meetings and thanked Chief Morrow for his effort.  
 

L726 President James referred to union events scheduled over the next several 
months. More information will follow.  
 
CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Employee Recognition – Chair Holm and Board members appreciate the time 

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                   May 23, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes 

and effort put forth to provide recognition. It is nice to see the great things that 
our personnel are doing out there. 

 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Ex-Officio Door - Provided an update on City Council meeting topics and South Sound 
911 issues. 
 
Commissioner Stringfellow - Congratulated AC Overby on his retirement – he earned it.  
 
Commissioner Willis - Would like to see anything done so that citizens recognize and 
understand who we are. 
 
Commissioner Coleman - Glad to see that everything is going well. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell - Nice that the Board can meet together and hopes it continues.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner 
Coleman seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 
 
      
DIANNE PORTER 
RECORDER  

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:    June 13th, 2022    

Item Title:     Insurance ILA Renewal 

Attachments:      

Submitted by:    AC Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

  
Motion:  To approve the Interlocal Agreement for Joint Insurance Purchasing effective 
October 1, 2022. 
 

 Two points of clarity –  
o Pierce County Fire District 6 was amended to reflect our Legal Name. 
o Language was presented to potentially allow new agencies to participate 

in this insurance group; language was reviewed by all participating 
agencies, and reviewed by legal(E.Quinn) through the Lead Agency. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
 

63



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR JOINT INSURANCE PURCHASING 

Exhibit 8B to Pierce County Master Interlocal Agreement 

  

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is entered into and effective this 1st day of 

October, 2022, by and between Pierce County Fire Protection Districts 3, 5 and Central Pierce Fire 

& Rescue (collectively “the Districts”). This Interlocal Agreement is intended to be incorporated 

by reference and included within the overall provisions of the Pierce County Master Interlocal 

Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners of the Districts desire to obtain insurance coverages of 

various types in the most cost-effective and comprehensive manner feasible to cover all 

appropriate liability and other insurable risks within their respective districts; and 

WHEREAS, the Districts have heretofore selected as agent of record Fournier Insurance 

Solutions (hereinafter “Agent”) to provide insurance coverage and contracts through highly rated 

insurance carriers; and 

WHEREAS, the Districts would like to continue their previous joint purchasing by 

execution of an interlocal agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34; and 

WHEREAS, Fire Protection District 3 has agreed to act as the lead agency to administer 

this Interlocal Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Districts are already signatories to the Master Interlocal Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed between the parties: 

1.  EXHIBIT TO MASTER INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT. 

This Interlocal Agreement for Joint Insurance Purchasing, entered into in short form as the 

Agreement, is intended to be and become a part of the Master Interlocal Agreement as Exhibit 8B 

thereto. Therefore, the terms of the Master Interlocal Agreement are deemed to be incorporated 

herein by this reference. 

2.  PURPOSE. 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the procedures for allocating and sharing the 

respective costs of the Districts, as those costs pertain to purchase of various insurance coverages 

with the assistance of the Agent, from the insurance company or companies recommended by the 

Agent. By purchasing such insurance coverages jointly, the Districts have found that considerable 

amounts can be saved with respect to premiums, and the administration relative to purchasing 

insurance can be shared, thereby freeing up administrative time for several districts. Finally, joint 

insurance purchasing has enabled the participating districts to purchase broader coverages and 

more insurance with higher limits of liability. 

64



3.  LEAD AGENCY. 

(a)  FPD3. Fire Protection District 3 hereby agrees to act as the Lead Agency for 

administrating this Agreement for the respective Districts. The responsible 

administrative personnel to interact with the insurance broker shall be the Lead 

Agency Fire Chief or their designated representative. 

(b)  Duties of Lead Agency. The Lead Agency shall be the primary liaison with the 

designated Agent. Its duties shall include informing the Agent of the details of 

coverages, insurance limits, special endorsements, and all other particulars of the 

insurance needs of the respective districts. While the Agent is not excluded from 

contacting executives of other districts, the primary contact and liaison with the 

Agent shall be and remain the designated administrative official at the Lead 

Agency. The Lead Agency shall keep the other participating districts informed as 

to any renewals, changes, endorsements, or material correspondence pertaining to 

the various insurance policies administered under this Agreement. Collection of 

premiums may be coordinated through the Lead Agency or may be billed directly 

by the Agent to the respective districts, as with endorsement premiums. 

4.  PROPORTIONATE SHARES. 

The proportionate shares or percentages of the premiums payable by each of the Districts shall 

vary from year to year, and may be changed without formal amendment of this Agreement. The 

Agent shall control the manner and means of calculating the proportionate shares to be paid by 

each District, with the attached “Exhibit A” being provided for example only and not as a binding 

method upon which proportionate shares must be calculated in future years.  

5.  AGREEMENT NOT EXCLUSIVE. 

The parties recognize and agree that one or more of the Districts may need to purchase separate 

insurance outside of this Agreement from any broker or insurance carrier which is appropriate, and 

nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit such extra purchases. 

Additional Districts may request to join the program by notifying the Lead Agency in writing or 

electronic email by December 31, for consideration of inclusion in the subsequent renewal cycle 

(October 1 of the following year). Potential new members shall provide: 

 Six (6) years current valued claims history 

 Statement of insurable values (property, equipment and apparatus) 

Additional information may be required to determine eligibility. Submission of these documents 

does not guarantee acceptability into the program and/or provide any coverage to the applicant. 

65



Current members shall meet (in person or remote) to review insurability and/or program insurance 

premium impacts of the potential new member. Each member shall have one vote, in favor or 

opposition, of accepting the new member into the program. Simple majority shall rule.    

(a) Should additional members be added to this Agreement which cause an even number 

of members and therefore the potential for tied voting, each member’s voting weight 

shall be based on their agency’s percentage of the total premium, as proportioned at 

last renewal. 

6.  TERMS OF AGREEMENT. 

The term of this Agreement shall be from and between October 1, 2022 and September 30, 2023 

and thereafter the term shall be one (1) year, commencing on October 1st annually, and concluding 

one year thereafter. The Agreement shall be reviewed annually, and unless modified by written 

amendment, shall be deemed automatically renewed for annual terms each year hereafter. 

However, any participant may discontinue its participation in the joint insurance program by 

giving notice no later than December 31 of its intent not to renew the agreement in the subsequent 

renewal cycle. 

7. CLAIM FILINGS & DEDUCTIBLES 

Members shall consult and review potential claims with the Agent before submitting to the 

program’s insurance carrier. The members recognize and agree each individual District is 

responsible for the respective deductible(s) associated with claims filed on its behalf. 

Members agree to facilitate adjustment of incidents when at fault, resulting in vehicle and/or 

property damage, where no bodily injury component is possible. Examples include, but are not 

limited to, accidents involving stationary and unoccupied vehicles, damage to inanimate objects 

such as buildings and other property (fencing, gates, carports, etc.). Members agree to pay all costs 

associated with remedy of these incidents when the total cost is $5,000 or less. The Agent is 

available to assist with the self-adjustment process and/or as consultation. 

8.  OTHER PROVISIONS. 

All other provisions of this Agreement are contained within the Master Interlocal Agreement. This 

Agreement shall only supersede provisions of the Master Interlocal Agreement when the 

provisions hereof are in direct conflict with provisions of the Master Interlocal Agreement. 

9.         ATTORNEY REVIEW 

The Parties agree that this Agreement should be reviewed by their attorney.  If two or more 

agencies signatory hereto are represented by Eric T. Quinn, P.S., the agencies consent to the dual 

representation by such Attorney, if any firm signatory is affixed hereto under “approved as to 

form.” 

 

66



 

DATE: ______________________   LEAD AGENCY: 

(PCFD3)      WEST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE  

        

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Chairperson of the Board  

 

        

____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

 

 

____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

Attest:  

 

 

_______________________ 

District Secretary 

 

 

 

  

67



DATE: ______________________   GIG HARBOR FIRE & MEDIC ONE 

(PCFD5)  

        

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Chairperson of the Board  

 

        

____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

 

 

____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

Attest:  

 

 

____________________________ 

District Secretary 

  

68



DATE: ______________________   CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

(PCFD6) 

        

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Chairperson of the Board  

 

        

____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

 

 

____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Commissioner  

Attest:  

 

 

____________________________ 

District Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

 

_____________________ 

Eric Quinn, Attorney at Law 

Eric T. Quinn, P.S.  

69



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  June 13th, 2022    

Item Title:   Benaroya Property Lease 

Attachments:      

Submitted by:  DC Karns 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

  
Motion:  To authorize Fire Chief Dustin Morrow to execute and sign the finalized Lease 
Agreement by and between Central Pierce Fire & Rescue and BCC Puyallup, LLC 
(Benaroya).  
 

 
 
  
 
 

70



                                         

1 
 

OFFICE LEASE 

 

 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT made this        day of                     , 20   , by and between BCC Puyallup,, 

LLC, a Washington Limited Liability Company (the "Lessor") and NEED ACTUAL NAME AND 

ENTITY STRUCTURE OF LESSEE_________________ (the "Lessee"). 

 

1. Premises.  Lessor does hereby lease to Lessee those certain premises, to wit:  approximately 19,557 

rentable square feet of office space on the first(1st) floor, Suite 120, as outlined on the Floor and 

Space Plan attached hereto as Exhibit C in the Building known as the South Building of South Hill 

Business & Technology Center  located at 1015 39th Avenue SE  in Puyallup, Washington and 

depicted on the Site Plan attached hereto as Exhibit B  (hereinafter called the "Premises") situated 

on land legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein. The multiple 

building project of which the “Building” is a part is hereafter sometimes referred to as the “Project”. 

In addition, the Lessee has the right, in common with other tenants in the Project and subject to the 

Rules and Regulations, to use of the Common Areas.   

 

2.  

 

 This Lease shall be for a term of one hundred twenty (120) months commencing on the date on 

which Lessor delivers possession of the Premises to Lessee with the Lessor’s Work (as defined in 

paragraph 11 below) substantially completed (the “Commencement Date”) and terminating one 

hundred twenty (120) months thereafter.  Rent for any fractional calendar month shall be the 

prorated portion of the rent computed on a daily basis.  When determined the parties agree to sign 

a memorandum commemorating the Commencement Date. 

 

3. Monthly Minimum Rent.  Lessee covenants and agrees to pay Lessor at18300 Cascade Avenue 

South, Suite 220, Seattle, WA 98188, or to such other party or at such other place as Lessor may 

hereafter designate, Monthly Minimum Rent in the following amounts according to the schedule 

below and Additional Rent, as provided in Section 9, in advance without offset or deduction, on or 

before the first (1st) day of each month of the Lease Term.  Any amount payable by Lessee to 

Lessor under this Lease shall be considered “Rent”: 

 

Period: Monthly Minimum Rent (Base Rent): 

Months 1 through 2 $0.00 per month NNN 

Months 3 through 12 $30,150.38 per month NNN 

Months 13 through 24 $31,054.89 per month NNN* 

 

*Base Rent will increase 3% annually effective on the anniversary date of the 

Commencement Date.  

 

 

4.  

 

 Security Deposit.  Lessee has deposited with Lessor on the date hereof Thirty Thousand One 

Hundred Fifty  and 38/100 Dollars ($30,150.38).  Said sum shall be held by Lessor as security for 

the faithful performance by Lessee of all the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease to be 

kept and performed by Lessee during the entire Term hereof.  If Lessee defaults with respect to any 

provision of this Lease, including, but not limited to, the provisions relating to the payment of Rent 

or other charges or sums due under this Lease, Lessor may (but shall not be required to) use, apply 

or retain all or any part of the security deposit for the payment of any Rent or other charges or sums 

due under this Lease or any sum in default, or for the payment of any amount which Lessor may 

spend or become obligated to spend by reason of Lessee's default, or to compensate Lessor for any 

other loss, damage, cost or expense (including attorneys' fees) which Lessor may suffer or incur by 

reason of Lessee's default.  If any portion of said security deposit is so used or applied, Lessee shall, 

within five (5) days after written demand therefore, deposit a certified or cashier's check with 

Lessor in an amount sufficient to restore the security deposit to its original amount and Lessee's 

failure to do so shall be a default under this Lease.  Lessor shall not be required to keep the security 

deposit separate from its general funds and Lessee shall not be entitled to interest on such deposit.  

If Lessee shall fully and faithfully perform every provision of this Lease to be performed by it, the 

security deposit or any balance thereof after deduction hereunder by Lessor shall be returned to 

Lessee (or, at Lessor's option, to the last assignee of Lessee's interest hereunder) within thirty (30) 

days following expiration of the Lease Term; provided, that in the event this Lease shall be 

terminated upon the default of the Lessee, the security deposit shall be retained by Lessor and all 

of Lessee's interest therein shall terminate and the security deposit will be applied against the 

damages suffered by Lessor by reason of the Lessee's default.  In the event of termination of 

Lessor's interest in this Lease, Lessor shall transfer said deposit to Lessor's successor in interest.  

 

71



                                         

2 
 

5. Use.  Lessee shall use and occupy the Premises for the purpose of Class A administrative office 

and after business hours public meetings and for no other purposes, without prior written consent 

of Lessor, and shall comply with all governmental laws, ordinances, regulations, orders and 

directives and insurance requirements applicable to Lessee's use of the Premises.  Lessee shall not 

occupy or use or permit any portion of the Premises to be occupied or used in such a manner or for 

any purpose which would increase the cost of insurance coverage upon the Premises, the building 

or the contents thereof. 

 

6. Rules and Regulations.  Lessee agrees to comply with any Rules and Regulations attached hereto 

as Exhibit D, any recorded Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions affecting the Project, as well as 

such other reasonable rules and regulations as may from time to time be adopted by Lessor for the 

management, good order and safety of common areas, the building and its Lessee(s).  Lessee shall 

be responsible for the compliance with such rules and regulations by its employees, agents and 

invitees.  Lessor's failure to enforce any of such rules and regulations against Lessee or any other 

Lessee shall not be deemed to be a waiver of same.   

 

7. Maintenance and Repairs. 

 

A.   Lessee Obligations.  Following delivery of possession of the Premises to Lessee, Lessee 

shall, at its expense, keep, maintain and preserve the Premises in first class condition.  Lessee shall, 

upon the expiration or sooner termination of the term hereof, surrender the Premises to Lessor in 

the same condition as when received, except for reasonable wear and tear as determined by Lessor 

and with all components and systems in good working order and repair.  Lessee shall not alter, 

remodel, improve, repair, decorate or paint the Premises or any part thereof without first obtaining 

the prior written permission of Lessor. 

 

B.   Lessor Obligations.  Notwithstanding Section 7a, Lessor shall maintain and repair 

(including replacement) the structural portions of the Building and the plumbing, heating, 

ventilating, air conditioning, elevator and electrical systems furnished by Lessor. The cost of such 

maintenance, repair and replacement will be amortized over its useful life and included as an 

Operating Expense.  Lessor shall not be liable for any failure to make any such repairs or to perform 

any maintenance unless such failure shall persist for an unreasonable time after written notice of 

the need of such repairs or maintenance is given to Lessor by Lessee.  There shall be no abatement 

of rent and no liability of Lessor by reason of any injury to or interference with Lessee’s business 

arising from the making of any repairs, alterations or improvements in or to any portion of the 

Building or the Premises or in or to fixtures, appurtenances and equipment therein.  Lessee waives 

the right, if any, to make repairs at Lessor’s expense under any law, statute or ordinance now or 

hereafter in effect. 

 

8. Utilities and Fees.  It is Lessor’s policy that utilities and services be furnished as set forth in Exhibit 

E hereto.  Lessor’s failure to furnish any of such items shall not result in any liability to Lessor, 

Lessee shall not be entitled to any abatement or reduction of rent by reason of such failure, and no 

eviction of Lessee shall result from such failure. Lessor shall  separately meter electrical for the 

Premises, and Lessee  shall pay all charges so metered. 

 

9. Additional Rent and Monthly Operating Expense Adjustments.  For each calendar year during 

this Lease, or portion thereof, in addition to the Monthly Minimum Rent as provided in Paragraph 

3 above, Lessee shall also pay “Additional Rent”.   The term “Additional Rent” means: “any amount 

in addition to Monthly Minimum Rent payable by Lessee under this Lease including Lessee’s pro 

rata share of Operating Expenses for each year.”  Lessor shall estimate, from time to time, Lessee’s 

payment amount.  This estimated amount shall be divided into equal monthly installments, one 

payable with each installment of the Monthly Minimum Rent.  As soon as practical following each 

calendar year, Lessor shall prepare an accounting of actual Operating Expenses incurred during the 

prior calendar year and such accounting shall reflect Lessee’s pro rata share.  If the Additional Rent 

paid by Lessee under this Section 9 during the preceding calendar year was less than the actual 

amount of Lessee’s pro rata share of Operating Expenses, Lessor shall notify Lessee and Lessee 

shall pay such amount to Lessor within fifteen (15) days of receipt of such notice.  If Lessee’s 

payments were greater than the actual amount due, then such overpayment shall be credited by 

Lessor to all present Additional Rent next due under this Section 9.   

 

For the purposes of this Paragraph 9, “Operating Expenses” shall include, but not be limited to: 

 

Real Estate taxes and assessments together with any assessments levied by 

the Owner’s Association, if any, all costs of management, operation, 

maintenance and repair (including replacement) of the Premises, the 

building and the Land, including without limitation the following:  all 

charges for light, heat, water, sewer, garbage, fire protection, and other 

utilities and services attributable to the Premises, and all license fees and 

72



                                         

3 
 

other governmental charges levied on Lessee's property and the operation 

of Lessee's business on the Premises; wages and salaries of employees; 

janitorial, cleaning, maintenance of building exterior, roofing, parking, 

landscaping, and all common areas and facilities, and other services; 

electricity, water, waste disposal and other utilities; heating, ventilating 

and air conditioning; materials and supplies; painting, repairs and other 

maintenance; insurance; all real and personal property taxes, assessments, 

and charges levied upon or with respect to the Land, the Building or 

Lessor’s interest in the same; and depreciation on personal property, 

management fees; expenses incurred to operate an on site management 

office; and other costs directly attributable to the management of the 

property.  If any portion of the Property, or any system or equipment is 

replaced by Lessor, the cost of such replacement will be amortized over 

its useful life and included as an Operating Expense.  

 

Even after this Lease has expired or been terminated, when final determination is made of Lessee’s 

pro rata share of Operating Expenses for the year in which this Lease expires or terminates, Lessee 

shall immediately pay any shortfall due.  Conversely, any overpayment made shall be rebated by 

Lessor to Lessee, unless Lessee at that time is indebted to Lessor.  

 

The determination of Lessee’s pro rata share of actual costs and estimated costs allocable to the 

Premises shall be made by Lessor.  Expenditures common to the Project will be allocated to Lessee 

based on its prorata share of space within the Project.  Expenditures that are not common to the 

Project will be allocated to Lessee based on its estimated usage or other method reasonably 

determined by Lessor.  Lessor or its agent shall keep records showing all expenditures made for 

the items enumerated above, which records shall be available for inspection and review by Lessee.  

The Lessee shall have the right, at reasonable times and upon reasonable prior notice to the Lessor 

to review the Lessor’s records relating to the actual costs and estimated costs allocable to the 

Premises for a particular Lease Year, which review must be conducted within six (6) months after 

Lessee’s receipt of the statement of actual costs allocable to the Premises for that particular Lease 

Year.  If such review is not conducted within such six (6) month period, then the matters set forth 

in the statement of actual costs allocable to the Premises for that particular Lease Year shall be 

deemed conclusive.  The Lessee shall pay the costs and expenses of such review unless such review 

reveals that the Lessor has overstated the Operating Expenses for the Lease Year in question by an 

amount equal to five percent (5%) or more for that particular Lease Year in which event the Lessor 

shall pay up to $1,000 in payment of the actual costs incurred by Lessee in the performance of such 

review. 

 

10. Lessor’s Reservations.  Lessor reserves the right without liability to Lessee: (a) to inspect the 

Premises, and to show them to prospective Lessees, partners or lenders and if they are vacated, to 

prepare them for re-occupancy; (b) to retain at all times and to use in appropriate instances keys to 

doors within and into the Premises; (c) to make repairs, alterations, additions or improvements, 

whether structural or otherwise, in or about the building, and for such purposes to enter upon the 

Premises and during the continuance of any work, to close common areas and to interrupt or 

temporarily suspend building services and facilities, all without affecting any of Lessee's 

obligations hereunder, so long as the Premises are reasonably accessible; and (d) generally to 

perform any act relating to the safety, protection and preservation of the Premises or building. 

 

11. Possession.  As a condition to the Commencement Date, Lessor will complete the improvements 

described on the Work Letter attached hereto as Exhibit F.  The “Delivery Date” will occur after 

Lessor’s delivery to Lessee of a notice of substantial completion of the improvements described in 

Exhibit F.    Lessor shall not be liable for any damages caused by failure to deliver possession of 

the Premises and Lessee shall not be liable for any rent until such time as Lessor delivers 

possession.  A delay of possession shall  extend the termination date.  Notwithstanding the above, 

in the event the delay was caused by Lessee, then the payment of Rent shall commence on the 

Commencement Date and Lessee shall not have any right to cancel this Lease as a result of such 

delay. If Lessor offers access to the Premises or any portion thereof prior to the Commencement 

Date of the term of this Lease, and if Lessee accepts such early access, then both parties shall be 

bound by all of the covenants and terms contained herein during such period. 

Prior to the Commencement Date, Lessor will complete the improvements described on the Work 

Letter attached hereto as Exhibit F.  In all other respects Lessee will accept delivery of the Premises 

in its current “as is” condition.  The “Commencement Date” will occur after Lessor’s delivery to 

Lessee a notice of substantial completion of the improvements described in Exhibit F. 

 

12. Assignment and Subletting.  Lessee shall not either voluntarily or by operation of law assign, 

transfer, convey or encumber this Lease or any interest under it, or sublet its right to occupy or use 

all or any portion of the Premises without Lessor's prior written consent.  Among the criteria to be 

used by Lessor in evaluating a request for assignment or subletting will be (i) the proposed use of 

73



                                         

4 
 

the Premises; (ii) the anticipated impact, if any, on parking; (iii) the financial capacity of the 

assignee/sublessee to perform the obligations under this Lease; (iv) the compatibility of the 

proposed user with the remainder of the tenants and operation of the Building.  Lessor reserves the 

right to recapture the Premises or applicable portion thereof in lieu of giving its consent by notice 

given to Lessee within twenty (20) days after receipt of Lessee's written request for assignment or 

subletting.  Such recapture shall terminate this Lease as to the applicable space effective on the 

prospective date of assignment or subletting, which shall be the last day of a calendar month and 

not earlier than sixty (60) days after receipt of Lessee's request hereunder. In the event that Lessor 

shall not elect to recapture and shall thereafter give its consent, Lessee shall pay Lessor a reasonable 

fee, not to exceed One Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) to reimburse Lessor for 

processing costs incurred in connection with such consent.  Lessor's consent shall not release or 

discharge Lessee from future liability under this Lease and shall not waive Lessor's right to consent 

to any future assignment or sublease.  Any assignment or subletting without Lessor's consent shall 

be void and shall, at Lessor's option, constitute a default under this Lease.  A transfer by the present 

majority shareholders of ownership or control of a majority of the voting stock of a corporate 

Lessee, or the change in form of entity of the Lessee, shall be deemed an assignment. 

 

The Lessee shall not assign its interest in or under this Lease for security purposes, nor shall the 

Lessee grant any security interest, lien or encumbrance against its interest in this Lease or in or to 

any property in or affixed to the Premises without the prior written consent of the Lessor, which 

consent shall be granted, withheld or conditioned in Lessor’s sole discretion.  In no event shall the 

Lessee grant, or allow to exist, any security interest in, or lien or encumbrance against the fee title 

to the Premises, the building in which the Premises is located or the real property on which the 

building is located. 

 

13. Alterations.  After obtaining the prior written consent of Lessor, Lessee may make minor 

alterations, additions and improvements in said Premises (so long as such alterations, additions or 

improvements are not structural in nature and not visible from the exterior of the Premises) at its 

sole cost and expense.  All such alterations, additions or improvements become the property of 

Lessor immediately upon installation in the Premises and shall be conclusively presumed to have 

been conveyed by Lessee to Lessor under this Lease as a bill of sale, without compensation, 

allowance, or credit to Lessee.  Lessee agrees to save Lessor harmless from any damage, loss, or 

expense arising from the construction f any alterations, additions and improvements and to comply 

with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and to provide Lessor with an unconditional lien 

waiver from the general contractor and any subcontractors prior to the commencement of the work.  

Upon termination of this Lease, all alterations, additions and improvements made in, to or on the 

Premises (including without limitation all electrical, lighting, plumbing, heating, air conditioning, 

and communications equipment and systems, doors, windows, partitions, drapery, carpeting, 

shelving, counters, and physically attached fixtures unless excluded by written agreement annexed 

hereto), shall remain upon and be surrendered as a part of the Premises; provided however, upon 

Lessor's request, Lessee shall remove its communications cabling and those additions, alterations, 

or improvements as may be specified by Lessor, and repair and restore the Premises to is original 

condition at Lessee's sole cost and expense prior to expiration of the Term.  For additional terms 

related to the initial improvements to the Premises see the Work Letter attached as Exhibit 

F. 

 

14. Liens.  Lessee shall keep the Premises free from any liens arising out of any work performed, 

materials furnished, equipment supplied, or obligations incurred by or on behalf of Lessee.  No 

work performed, material furnished, equipment supplied or obligations incurred by or on behalf of 

Lessee shall be deemed to be for the immediate use and benefit of Lessor so that no mechanic's lien 

or other lien shall be allowed against Lessor's estate in the premises. Lessee shall provide, at 

Lessee's own cost, waivers of lien signed by any party (including the Lessee) who performs work, 

furnishes materials, or supplies equipment to the Premises. Lessor may require, at Lessee's sole 

cost and expense, a lien release and completion bond in an amount equal to either the actual contract 

price or one and one-half times the estimated cost of any improvements, additions or alterations in 

the Premises which Lessee desires to make, to insure Lessor against any liability for lien and to 

insure completion of the work. 

 

15. Signs.  Lessor will provide Lessee with Building standard lobby and directory signage, a sign on 

the monument sign on 39th Avenue and a sign on the exterior of the Building, including power to 

the exterior locations.  The cost of signage will be paid from the Tenant Improvement Allowance 

as described in Exhibit F. All signs or symbols placed by Lessee in the windows and doors of the 

Premises, or upon any exterior part of the building, shall be subject to Lessor's prior written 

approval and subject to City of Puyallup sign codes.  Prior to termination of this Lease, Lessee will 

remove all signs placed by it upon the Premises, and will repair any damages caused by such 

removal.    

 

16. Insurance.  

74



                                         

5 
 

 

A Lessor's Insurance.  All insurance maintained by Lessor shall be for the sole benefit of 

Lessor and under Lessor's sole control.  Lessor agrees to maintain property insurance insuring the 

Building against damage or destruction due to risk including fire, vandalism, and malicious 

mischief in an amount not less than eighty percent (80%) (or such greater percentage as may be 

necessary to comply with the provisions of any co insurance clauses of the policy) of the 

replacement cost thereof, in the form and with deductibles and endorsements as selected by Lessor.  

At its election, Lessor may instead (but shall have no obligation to) obtain "All Risk" coverage, 

and may also obtain earthquake, pollution, and/or flood insurance in amounts selected by Lessor.  

Lessor shall not be obligated to insure, and shall have no responsibility whatsoever for any damage 

to, any furniture, machinery, goods, inventory or supplies, or other personal property or fixtures 

which Lessee may keep or maintain in the Premises, or any leasehold improvements, additions or 

alterations within the Premises. 

 

B Lessee's Insurance.  Lessee shall, at its sole expense, purchase and keep in force during the 

Term of this Lease the following:   

 

i.  Property Insurance.  Property insurance on all personal property and fixtures of Lessee 

and all improvements, additions or alterations made by or for Lessee to the Premises on an "All 

Risk" or "Special Form" basis, insuring such property for its full replacement value.  The policy 

may at Lessor’s option include Business Income and Extra Expense Endorsements at 100% of 

Lessee's gross revenue for a period of twelve (12) months, and Boiler and Machinery and Plate 

Glass coverage if required by Lessor. 

 

ii.  Liability Insurance.  Commercial general liability insurance in the amount of not less 

than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) combined single limit per occurrence and Two Million 

Dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the annual aggregate, covering bodily injury, personal and advertising 

injury and property damage liability occurring in or about the Premises or arising out of the use and 

occupancy of the Premises and the Building, and any part of either, and any areas adjacent thereto, 

and the business operated by Lessee or by any other occupant of the Premises.  Such insurance 

shall (1) include contractual liability coverage insuring all of Lessee's indemnity obligations under 

this Lease; (2) be written to apply to all bodily injury (including death), property damage or loss 

(broad form), fire legal liability, products completed operations, medical payments, personal and 

advertising injury and other covered loss, however occasioned; (3) shall provide for the severability 

of interests of insureds; and (4) shall be written on an "occurrence" basis, which shall afford 

coverage for all claims based on acts, omissions, injury and damage, which occurred or arose (or 

the onset of which occurred or arose) in whole or in part during the policy period. The policy shall 

include an endorsement providing that the general aggregate limit shall be on a per location basis, 

to include the leased premises.   

 

iii.  Workers' Compensation Insurance.  Lessee shall maintain all required coverages 

including employer’s liability at a limit of not less than $1,000,000. 

iv.  Auto Liability Insurance.    Lessee shall maintain auto liability for all owned, non-owned and 

hired autos at a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per accident. 

 

v.  General Insurance Requirements.  All coverages described in this section shall (1) name 

Lessor, Lessor's property manager, and the members, managers, partners, trustees, officers, 

directors, shareholders, parents affiliates and subsidiaries of Lessor, its representatives, assigns, 

licensees, beneficiaries, agents and employees (the "Lessor Entities") as additional insured on the 

commercial general liability policy and as additional insured/loss payee on the property insurance 

policy with respect to Lessor's interest in improvements and alterations; (2) be issued by an 

insurance company rated A:VII or better in "Best's Insurance Guide" and authorized to do business 

in the State of Washington; (3) be primary and provide that any insurance coverage maintained by 

Lessor shall be considered excess and non-contributing to the policies required by this section; (4) 

endeavor to provide Lessor with forty-five (45) days' notice of cancellation or change in terms (ten 

(10) days for cancellation due to non-payment of premium); and (5) waive all rights of subrogation 

by the insurance carrier against Lessor.  The policies of insurance or certificates thereof shall be 

delivered to Lessor by Lessee upon the earlier of (x) Lessee's possession of the Premises, or (y) the 

Commencement Date of this Lease, and upon each renewal of such insurance throughout the term 

of this Lease.  The coverage afforded to Lessor must be at least as broad as that afforded to Lessee 

and may not contain any terms, conditions, exclusions or limitations applicable to Lessor that do 

not apply to Lessee.  If at any time during the Term the amount or coverage of insurance which 

Lessee is required to carry under this section is, in Lessor's reasonable judgment, materially less 

than the amount or type of insurance coverage typically carried by Lessees of properties located in 

the general area in which the Premises are located, or if Lessee's use of the Premises changes with 

or without Lessor's consent, Lessor shall have the right to require Lessee to increase the amount or 

change the types of insurance coverage required under this section.  If Lessee fails to procure such 

insurance, or to deliver such policies or certificates, Lessor may, at Lessor's option and in addition 

75



                                         

6 
 

to Lessor's other remedies in the event of a default by Lessee hereunder, procure and maintain 

insurance for such items and interests to protect Lessor in such amounts as Lessor may determine 

to be appropriate and any and all premiums paid or payable by Lessor therefore shall be deemed to 

be additional rent and shall be due on the payment date of the next installment of Rent hereunder.  

 

vi   Increase in Insurance Premium. Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, 

Lessee shall not keep, use, sell or offer for sale in or upon the Leased Premises any article, nor 

conduct any activities or operations, which are or may be prohibited by Lessor's insurance carriers. 

Lessee shall pay any increase in premiums for property or liability insurance maintained by Lessor 

resulting from Lessee's use or occupancy of the Leased Premises, whether or not Lessor has 

consented thereto. In the event of such increased insurance premiums to Lessor, Lessee also shall 

pay immediately to Lessor an amount equal to any additional premium on the insurance policy or 

policies that Lessor may carry for its protection against loss resulting from any insured event. In 

determining whether increased premiums are the result of Lessee's use or occupancy of the Leased 

Premises, the rates and premiums determined by the organization setting the insurance premiums 

shall be conclusive evidence of the several items and charges which make up the insurance 

premiums. Lessor shall deliver bills for such additional amounts to Lessee at such times as Lessor 

may elect, and Lessee shall immediately pay Lessor therefor. 

 

vii  Lessee’s Contractor. Lessee’s contractor shall, at its own cost and expense, keep and 

maintain in full force and effect, a policy of comprehensive/commercial general liability insurance 

on an occurrence form, including but not limited to premises and operations; blanket contractual; 

products/completed operations; owner’s and contractor’s protective; employer’s contingent 

liability or stop gap; personal injury  insuring contractor’s activities with respect to the Leased 

Premises, against claims of bodily injury or death or property damage or loss, with a limit of not 

less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence and in the general aggregate and include 

an endorsement providing that the foregoing limit shall apply per project, including the Lessee’s 

Leased Premises. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if during the Lease Term, in Lessor's reasonable 

judgment, the policy limits required hereunder are no longer adequate to provide reasonable 

protection to Lessor, Lessor may notify contractor of such inadequacy and an appropriate level of 

coverage and contractor, within thirty (30) days of receiving such a notice, shall obtain such 

additional amounts of insurance and provide Lessor with satisfactory evidence thereof. Reference 

may be made to policy amounts required by other Lessors for similar space and operations in 

determining what is reasonable protection hereunder. Contractor shall maintain all required 

Workers Compensation coverages including employer’s liability at a limit of not less than one 

million dollars ($1,000,000). Contractor shall maintain automobile liability for all owned, non-

owned and hired autos at a limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident.The 

insurance required under this Section shall be with companies rated A-VII or better in A.M. Best's 

Insurance Guide. This insurance shall be primary and non-contributing in nature to Lessor’s 

insurance.  Lessor, Lessor's property manager, and the members, managers, partners, trustees, 

officers, directors, shareholders, parents affiliates and subsidiaries of Lessor, its representatives, 

assigns, licensees, beneficiaries, agents and employees (the "Lessor Entities") shall  be named as 

additional insureds. The insurance policy shall bear an endorsement that the policy shall not be 

cancelled or the policy limits reduced by endorsement below the coverage required by this Lease 

for any reason other than nonpayment of premiums except upon forty-five (45) days' prior written 

notice to Lessor and only after ten (10) days' prior written notice for non-payment of premiums. 

Contractor shall deliver to Lessor upon the Commencement Date and from time to time thereafter 

as requested by Lessor copies of all policies of such insurance or certificates thereof showing Lessor 

as an additional insured and the applicable policy limits thereof. In no event shall the limits of such 

policies be considered as limiting the liability of contractor under this Lease. 

 

viii. Required Insurance limits will be increased every five years based on the increase in the 

Consumer Price Index. 

 

 

17. Indemnity Against Liability for Loss or Damage  

 

A. Lessee assumes all liability for and shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Lessor from 

and against all loss, damage or expense which the Lessor may sustain or incur, and against any and 

all claims, demands, suits and actions whatsoever, including expense of investigation and litigation, 

on account of injury to or death of persons, including without limitation employees of Lessor, 

employees of Lessee or its affiliated companies or on account of damage to or destruction of 

property, including without limitation property owned by and property in the care, custody or 

control of Lessor during the Term, due to or arising in any manner from: 

 

(i) The acts or negligence of Lessee or any contractor, subcontractor, or agent of 

Lessee or their respective employees; 

 

76



                                         

7 
 

(ii) The condition, use or operation of the Premises and/or materials or substances used 

by Lessee or any of its contractors, subcontractors or agents of Lessee or by their 

respective employees, regardless of whether or not furnished by Lessor under this 

Lease or otherwise; 

 

(iii) Any damage or injury to persons or property arising out of Lessee's breach of this 

Lease, including, but not limited to, obligations of Lessee under Section 7, 

Maintenance. 

 

B. Lessor shall have no liability to Lessee as a result of loss or damage to Lessee’s property 

or for death or bodily injury caused by the acts or omissions of other tenants in the project or by 

third parties (including criminal acts). 

 

C. Lessee shall not be obligated to indemnify Lessor for the portion of any claim or liability 

caused by or arising from the act, or negligence of Lessor. 

 

D.  It is mutually understood and agreed that the assumption of liabilities and indemnification 

provided for in this Section 17 shall survive any termination of this Lease. 

 

18. Damage or Destruction.  If any of the Premises, or a substantial part of the building in which the 

Premises are located, shall be damaged or destroyed by fire or other insured casualty, and repair of 

the damage can not be completed within one hundred eighty (180) days, following receipt by Lessor 

of actual notice of such damage or destruction Lessor shall have the option either (a) to repair or 

rebuild within a reasonable time utilizing the  insurance proceeds to effect such repair, or (b) not to 

repair or rebuild, and to cancel this Lease on thirty (30) days notice.  If Lessor fails to give Lessee 

written notice of its election within thirty (30) days from the date of damage, or if the restoration 

of the Premises cannot be completed within two hundred seventy (270) days from date of notice, 

Lessee may cancel this Lease at its option on three (3) days notice.  During the period of 

untenantability, rent shall abate in the same ratio as the portion of the Premises rendered 

untenantable bears to the whole of the Premises; provided that if the damage is due to the fault or 

neglect of Lessee, there shall be no abatement of rent. 

 

If the Premises or the building in which the Premises are located shall be damaged or destroyed by 

fire or other insured casualty, and repair of the damage can be completed within one hundred eighty 

(180) days, Lessor shall repair or rebuild within a reasonable time utilizing the insurance proceeds 

to effect such repair.   

 

If any part of the Premises or the building in which the Premises are located shall be damaged or 

destroyed by an uninsured casualty Lessor shall have the option either (a) to repair or rebuild within 

a reasonable time, or (b) not to repair or rebuild, and to cancel this Lease on thirty (30) days notice.  

In the event of cancellation by Lessor as a result of an uninsured casualty, Lessee shall have the 

right, within five (5) days following Lessor’s notice of cancellation, to override such cancellation 

by agreeing to repair the damage at Lessee’s sole cost and expense.  In such event, the Lessee shall 

repair or rebuild within a reasonable time following the damage or destruction. 

 

19. Eminent Domain. If the whole of the Premises shall be taken by any public authority under the 

power of eminent domain, or purchased by the condemnor in lieu thereof, then the term of this 

Lease shall cease as of the date possession is taken by such public authority. If only part of the 

Premises shall be so taken, the Lease shall terminate only as to the portion taken, and shall continue 

in full force and effect as to  the remainder of said Premises, and the monthly rent shall be reduced 

proportionately; provided, however, if the remainder of the Premises cannot be made tenantable 

for the purposes for which Lessee has been using the Premises or if more than twenty-five percent 

(25%) of the rentable square footage of the Premises shall be so taken, then either party, by written  

notice to the other, given at least thirty (30) days prior to the date that possession must be 

surrendered to the public authority, may terminate this Lease effective as of such surrender of 

possession.  If any part of the building other than the Premises shall be so taken so as to render in 

Lessor's opinion the termination of this Lease beneficial to the remaining portion of the building, 

Lessor shall have the right within sixty (60) days of said taking to terminate this Lease upon thirty 

(30) days written notice to Lessee. In the event of any taking, whether whole or partial, Lessor shall 

be entitled to all awards, settlements, or compensation which may be given for the land and 

buildings.  Lessee shall have no claim against Lessor for the value of any unexpired term of this 

Lease.  Lessee shall have the right to seek an independent and separate award from the condemning 

authority for relocation benefits and for any tangible personal property of the Lessee taken so long 

as such award does not diminish the amount of the award payable to Lessor. 

 

20. Insolvency.  If Lessee shall be declared insolvent or bankrupt, or if Lessee's leasehold interest 

herein shall be levied upon or seized under writ of any court of law, or if a trustee, receiver or 

assignee be appointed for the property of Lessee, whether under operation of State or Federal 

77



                                         

8 
 

statutes, then Lessor may, at its option, immediately, without notice (notice being expressly 

waived), terminate this Lease and take possession of said Premises. 

 

21. Default and Re-Entry.  If Lessee fails to keep or perform any of the covenants and agreements 

herein contained, then the same shall constitute a breach hereof.  If the breach is Lessee’s failure to 

pay rent or other charges provided for herein, then the Lease is in default upon the occurrence of 

such breach.  If Lessee has not remedied other types of breaches within ten (10) days after written 

notice thereof from Lessor, except that if the breach cannot reasonably be cured within such ten 

(10) day period, then if Lessee fails to commence to cure within such ten (10) day period and 

thereafter, diligently prosecute such cure to completion, then the same shall be a default.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee’s failure to comply with the same Lease term or covenant 

on three (3) occasions during the Term, even if such breach is cured within the applicable cure 

period, will constitute a default. 

 

 Upon and at any time after any default Lessor may, at its option, without further notice or demand: 

 

A. Cure such breach for the account and at the expense of Lessee (including entry upon the 

Premises to make repairs on behalf of the Lessee where Lessee has failed to make such repairs as 

required under this Lease) and such expense shall be deemed Additional Rent due on the first of 

the following month; or 

 

B. Re-enter the Premises, remove all persons therefrom, take possession of the Premises and 

remove all personal property therein at Lessee's risk and expense and (1) terminate this Lease, or 

(2) without terminating the Lease, terminate the right of possession hereunder.  In either event, any 

moneys received from Lessee and any deposit or other amounts held by Lessor may first be applied 

by Lessor to any damages suffered by Lessor as a result of such default, including without 

limitation, costs and expenses incurred on re-entry and re-letting, any unamortized tenant 

improvements and commissions, cleaning, necessary repairs, restoration and alteration, and any 

commissions incurred on re-letting (“Re-leasing Costs”), and the balance of such amounts may be 

applied toward payment of other sums due to Lessor hereunder.  In the event the Premises are re-

let for Lessee's account, Lessee shall pay to Lessor monthly any deficiency; however, Lessor shall 

not be required to pay any excess to Lessee.  Upon termination of this Lease or of Lessee’s right to 

possession, Lessor reserves and has the right to recover damages arising from the breach of the 

Lease from Lessee including, but not limited to:  (w) Re-leasing Costs; (x) The Worth (see interest 

calculation below) of the unpaid rent and other charges provided for herein that had been earned at 

the time of such termination; (y) The worth of the amount of the unpaid rent and other charges 

provided for herein that would have been earned for the balance of the term of this Lease after the 

date of such termination; and (z) Any other amount, including court, attorney and collection costs, 

necessary to compensate Lessor.  “The Worth,” as used in Clause (x) above is to be calculated with 

interest at 18% per year (or, if applicable, at such lower rate as may represent the highest legal limit 

allowed in the State of Washington).  “The worth” as used in Clause (y) above is to be computed 

by discounting the amount at the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco at the 

time of termination.  The above remedies of Lessor are cumulative and in addition to any other 

remedies now or hereafter allowed by law or elsewhere provided for in this Lease.  

        

C. Lessor shall not be liable for damages by reason of the re-entry described in paragraph B, 

above. 

 

22. Removal of Property.  Any property of Lessee removed by Lessor in accordance with Section 21 

above may be stored, sold, or disposed of by Lessor without any additional notice to Lessee at the 

sole risk and expense of Lessee and without any further responsibility of Lessor.  Proceeds 

therefrom may be applied by Lessor upon any indebtedness due from Lessee to Lessor.  Lessee 

waives all claims for damages that may be caused by Lessor re-entering the Premises and removing 

or disposing of said property as herein provided. 

 

23. Costs and Attorneys’ Fees.  If there is litigation between the parties concerning this Lease 

(including any litigation or other proceeding in Bankruptcy Court), the prevailing party shall be 

entitled to recover from the losing party the cost and expenses of such action, including reasonable 

collection fees, attorneys’ fees (including without limitation the allocated cost of in-house counsel) 

and court costs, including but not limited to those incurred at and in preparation for discovery 

(including depositions), arbitration, trial, appeal and review.   

 

 Any dispute relating to this Lease shall be brought in the State or Federal Court in the County in 

which the Premises are located or, at Lessor's election, in King County, Washington; provided, 

however, that Lessor has the right to initiate binding arbitration conducted by Judicial Dispute 

Resolution, LLC, in Seattle, Washington. 

 

78



                                         

9 
 

24. Subrogation Waiver.  Lessor and Lessee each herewith and hereby release and relieve the other 

and waive its entire right of recovery against the other for loss or damage arising out of or incident 

to the perils of fire, explosion or any other perils described in the "all risk" insurance and the events 

covered under the property insurance coverages required under this Lease, whether due to the 

negligence of either party, their agents, employees or otherwise.  Each party shall obtain from its 

respective insurer under each insurance policy that it maintains a waiver of all rights of subrogation 

which the insurer may have against the other party for claims that are released under this Section 

24. 

 

25. Holding Over.  If Lessee, with the express consent of Lessor, shall hold over after the expiration 

of the term of this Lease, Lessee shall remain bound by all the covenants and agreements herein, 

except that (a) the tenancy shall be from month-to-month and (b) the monthly rent to be paid by 

Lessee shall be determined by multiplying the monthly rent in effect immediately preceding such 

expiration times 150%.  If Lessee holds possession of the Demised Premises after the expiration of 

the Lease without the express written consent of Lessor, Lessee shall remain bound by all the 

covenants and agreements herein, except that (a) the tenancy shall be at sufferance and (b) the 

monthly rent to be paid by Lessee shall be the greater of twice the monthly rent in effect 

immediately preceding such expiration or the total loss to Lessor as a result of Lessee's holdover, 

if, effective during the term of such holdover, Lessor has leased all or part of the Premises to other 

Lessee(s).  Any such tenancy may be terminated with twenty (20) days prior notice as provided by 

Washington State law. 

 

In the event of any unauthorized holding over, Lessee shall also indemnify and hold Lessor 

harmless from and against all liability, losses, claims, causes of action, damages, costs and expenses 

(including without limitation attorney fees) resulting from Lessee’s failure to surrender the 

Premises, including without limitation claims made by succeeding Lessees resulting from Lessee’s 

failure to surrender the Premises. 

 

Lessee’s obligations under this Section 25 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease. 

 

26. Subordination and Attornment; Mortgage Protection.  

 

A. Subordination-Notice to Mortgagee.  At the request of Lessor, Lessee shall promptly 

execute, acknowledge and deliver, all instruments which may be required to subordinate this Lease 

to any existing or future mortgages, deeds of trust and/or other security documents on or 

encumbering the Premises or on the leasehold interest held by Lessor, and to any extensions, 

renewals, or replacements thereof, provided that the mortgagee or beneficiary, as the case may be, 

shall agree to recognize this Lease in the event of foreclosure if Lessee is not in material default at 

such time. 

 

B. Lessee’s Certificate.  Lessee shall at any time and from time to time within five (5) days 

after written notice from Lessor execute, acknowledge and deliver to Lessor a statement in writing 

(a) certifying that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or, if modified, stating the 

nature of such modification and certifying that this Lease as so modified is in full force and effect), 

and the date to which the rental and other charges are paid in advance, if any; and (b) 

acknowledging that there are not, to Lessee's knowledge, any uncured defaults on the part of the 

Lessor or Lessee hereunder, or specifying such defaults if any are claimed; and (c) setting forth the 

date of commencement of rents and expiration of the Lease Term hereof; and, (d) such other 

information as the Lessor shall reasonably require.  Any such statement may be relied upon by any 

prospective purchaser or encumbrancer of all or any portion of the Premises of which the Premises 

are a part. 

 

C. Mortgagee Protection Clause.  Lessee agrees to notify any mortgagee and/or trust deed 

holders, by registered mail, with a copy of any notice of default served upon the Lessor, provided 

that prior to such notice Lessee has been notified in writing (by way of Notice of Assignment of 

Rents and Lease, or otherwise) of the addresses of such mortgagees and/or trust deed holders.  

Lessee further agrees that if Lessor shall have failed to cure such default, then the mortgagees 

and/or trust deed holders have thirty (30) days within which to cure such default or if such default 

cannot be cured within that time, then such additional times as may be necessary if within such 

thirty (30) days any mortgagee and/or trust deed holder has commenced and is diligently pursuing 

the remedies necessary to cure such default (including but not limited to commencement of 

foreclosure proceedings if necessary to affect such cure), in which event this Lease shall not be 

terminated if such remedies are being so diligently pursued. 

 

27. Surrender of Possession.  Lessee shall, prior to the termination of this Lease or of Lessee's right 

to possession, remove from the Premises all personal property which Lessee is entitled to remove 

and those alterations, additions, improvements or signs which may be required by Lessor to be 

removed, including cabling, pursuant to Sections 13 and 15 above, and shall repair or pay for all 

79



                                         

10 
 

damage to the Premises caused by such removal.  All such property remaining and every interest 

of Lessee in the same shall be conclusively presumed to have been conveyed by Lessee to Lessor 

under this Lease as a bill of sale, without compensation, allowance, or credit to Lessee.  Lessee 

shall upon termination of this Lease or of Lessee's right of possession, deliver all keys to Lessor 

and peacefully quit and surrender the Premises without notice, neat and clean, and in as good 

condition as when Lessee took possession, except for reasonable wear and tear as determined by 

Lessor and with all components and systems in good working order and repair. 

 

28. Late Payment and Interest.  If any amount due from Lessee is not received in the office of Lessor 

on or before the third (3rd) day following the date upon which such amount is due and payable, a 

late charge of five percent (5%) of said amount shall become immediately due and payable, which 

late charge Lessor and Lessee agree represents a fair and reasonable estimate of the processing and 

accounting costs that Lessor will incur by reason of such late payment.  All past due amounts owing 

to Lessor under this Lease, including rent, shall be assessed interest at an annual percentage rate of 

eighteen percent (18%) from the date due until paid. 

 

29. Notice.  Any notice, communication or remittance required or permitted by this Lease by either 

party to the other shall be deemed given, served or delivered, in writing, delivered personally or by 

courier or by telephonic facsimile transmission with automatic confirmation, addressed to the 

Lessor at the address specified for the payment of rent under Paragraph 3 of this Lease or to Lessee 

at the Premises or to such other address as either party may designate to the other in writing from 

time to time. 

 

30. No Waiver of Covenants.  Time is of the essence of this Lease.  Any waiver by either party of any 

breach hereof by the other shall not be considered a waiver of any future similar or other breach. 

 

31. Entire Agreement.  It is expressly understood and agreed by Lessor and Lessee that there are no 

promises, agreements, conditions, understandings, inducements, warranties, or representations, 

oral or written, express or implied, between them, other than as herein set forth and that this Lease 

shall not be modified in any manner except by an instrument in writing executed by the parties. 

 

32. Binding on Heirs, Successors and Assigns.  The covenants and agreements of this Lease shall be 

binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of both parties hereto, 

except as hereinabove provided. 

 

33. Lessor’s Assignment.  It is fully understood that Lessor shall have the full right to assign this 

Lease, without any notice to Lessee, and Lessee will attorn to such assignee, thereby relieving 

Lessor from all and any liabilities; provided however, that the assignee assumes all Lessor’s 

responsibilities as set forth in this Lease. 

 

34. Environmental.  See Rider One attached and incorporated into this Lease by this reference.  

 

35. Brokers; Agency Disclosure; Brokerage Relationships. 

 

A.  Payment of Brokers.  Lessor shall pay the commissions due those real estate brokers or 

agents named below pursuant to separate written agreements.  If Lessee has dealt with any other 

person or real estate broker with respect to leasing or renting space in the Building, Lessee shall be 

solely responsible for the payment of any fee due said person or firm and Lessee shall hold Lessor 

free and harmless against any liability in respect thereto, including attorney’s fees and costs. 

 

B. Agency Disclosure.  At the signing of this Lease Agreement, the Lessor’s Leasing Agent, 

Andrea Peterson, Scott Sulman and Michael George, ofNAI Puget Sound Properties, 

representedLessor.  The Lessee’s agent, Jerome O’Leary, ofKidder Mathews, Inc, 

representedLessee.  Each party signing this document confirms that the prior oral and/or written 

disclosure of agency was provided to him/her in this transaction. (As required by WAC 308-124D-

040). 

 

36.  Force Majeure.  Lessor shall have no liability to Lessee on account of the following acts of “force 

majeure,” which shall include (a) the inability of Lessor to fulfill, or delay in fulfilling, any of 

Lessor’s obligations under this Lease by reason of strike, lockout, other labor trouble, dispute or 

disturbance; (b) governmental regulation, moratorium, action, inaction, preemption or priorities or 

other controls, including delays in receipt of permits; (c) shortages of fuel, supplies or labor; (d) 

any failure or defect in the supply, quantity or character of electricity or water furnished to the 

Premises by reason of any requirement, act or omission of the public utility or others furnishing the 

Building with electricity or water; or (e) for any other reason, whether similar or dissimilar to the 

above, or for act of God, beyond Lessor’s reasonable control.  If this Lease specifies a time period 

for performance of an obligation of Lessor, that time period shall be extended by the period of any 

delay in Lessor’s performance caused by any of the events of force majeure described herein. 

80



                                         

11 
 

 

37. Limitation of Liability.  The recourse of Lessee to recover any claim against Lessor arising under 

this Lease shall be limited to Lessor’s interest in the Building and to the rents, issues and profits 

from the Building.  Lessee waives any and all recourse for any such liability against Lessor’s 

members, partners, shareholders, trustees or beneficiaries, or any property or assets of Lessor other 

than the Building. 

 

38. Survival.  The obligations and liabilities of Lessee hereunder, as well as the release, indemnity and 

attorney fee provisions of this Lease, shall survive the expiration of this Lease and/or the 

termination of this Lease and/or the termination of Lessee’s right of possession. 

 

39. Option to Extend.  Lessee may extend this lease for two consecutive additional terms of five years 

each, provided Lessee fully satisfies the conditions hereafter stated.  If so extended, this Lease shall 

continue as though the extended term were part of the original term except the Minimum Monthly 

Rent pursuant to Section 3, which shall be increased at the beginning of the extension term to then 

current market rent.   

 

Lessee’s right to extend this lease as above stated is subject to the following conditions: 

A. Lessee shall provide Lessor at least twelve (12) months prior written notice of its exercise 

of this option to extend this lease pursuant to this section. 

B. Lessee shall not have been in default beyond any cure period or have received more than 

one default notice during the term of this lease. 

 

Upon receipt of Lessee’s notice to extend, Lessor shall provide Lessee notice stating the rental rate 

it would be willing to accept for the extended term (the “Lessor’s Notice Rate”).  Lessee shall have 

ten (10) days after receipt of Lessor’s Notice Rate to accept or reject such rate.  In the event Lessee 

rejects the Lessor’s Notice Rate such rejection shall state the rate that Lessee would be willing to 

pay for the extended term (the “Lessee’s Notice Rate”). Within two (2) days thereafter each party 

shall select an appraiser and the two appraisers shall within ten (10) days appoint a third appraiser  

(the “Determining Appraiser”).  The Determining Appraiser shall make an independent 

determination of whether the Lessor’s Notice Rate or the Lessee’s Notice Rate represents the 

correct Market Rent for the renewal term as of the commencement date of such renewal term, 

without reduction for concessions and including any market escalations then in effect.  “Market 

Rent” shall mean the rent obtained for comparable space for a comparable term in comparable 

buildings in the geographic area in which the building is located and comparable space shall mean 

similar sized space in similar condition.  The Determining Appraiser will be instructed that it must 

choose either the Lessor’s Notice Rate or the Lessee’s Notice Rate and is not permitted to select 

any other rate.  Such determination of Market Rent shall be made within thirty (30) days of selection 

of the Determining Appraiser. Each party shall be bound by this determination.  All appraisal costs 

will be paid by the party whose suggested rate was not selected as the Market Rate by the 

Determining Appraiser.  The market rent determination established pursuant to this paragraph will 

be binding upon the parties and the Lease shall be extended for the additional term. 

 

 

40.  Parking.  The Lessee will be provided Twenty (20)  Parking Stalls designated as “Reserved” in the 

newly improved parking area on the northeasterly side of the leased premises designated for their 

exclusive use during the lease term.  Lessor will not be obligated to monitor, police or ensure the 

exclusivity of the parking spaces. 

 

41. Not an Offer. Submission of this document for examination and signature by lessee is not an 

offer to lease and does not create a reservation or option to lease; no claim for reliance, estoppel, 

contract, breach of good faith, or other claim can be made based upon the circulation of this Lease.  

This document will become effective and binding only upon full execution and delivery by both 

Lessee and Lessor. 

 

42.  Exhibits.  The following exhibits or riders are made a part of this Lease and are incorporated herein 

by reference: 

 

Rider One - Environmental    

Exhibit A - Legal Description of Land 

Exhibit B-Site Plan 

Exhibit C – Floor and Space Plan of Premises 

Exhibit D - Rules and Regulations 

Exhibit E - Standards for Utilities and Services 

Exhibit F - Work Letter Agreement 

 

 

 

81



                                         

12 
 

LESSOR:       LESSEE: 

 

BCC PUYALLUP, LLC 

          

 

 
              
         (SIGNATURE) 

By:  Larry R. Benaroya      By:        
         (PLEASE PRINT) 

 Its:  Manager       Its:       

 

Date:          Date:        

82



                                         

13 
 

LANDLORD NOTARY 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

 ) ss. 

COUNTY OF KING ) 

 

 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Larry R. Benaroya is the person who appeared 

before me, and said person acknowledged that he signed this instrument, on oath stated that he was authorized 

to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the Manager of BCC Puyallup,, LLC, a Washington limited 

liability company, to be the free and voluntary act of such limited liability company for the uses and purposes 

mentioned in the instrument. 

 

 DATED: _________________ 

       

(Signature) 

 

       

(Please print name legibly) 

 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 

Washington, residing at      

My commission expires     

 

TENANT NOTARY (CORPORATION) 
 

STATE OF ) 

 ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ) 

 

 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that _____________________ is the person who 

appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that ______ signed this instrument as the 

__________________________ of _________________________________, a 

_____________________corporation, and on oath acknowledged it to be the free and voluntary act of such 

corporation for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument, and on oath stated that _____ was authorized 

to execute this instrument on behalf of such corporation. 

 

 DATED: _________________ 

       

(Signature) 

 

       

(Please print name legibly) 

 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 

________________________________________,  

 

residing at _____     

 

My commission expires     

 

TENANT NOTARY (LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY) 

 

STATE OF ) 

 ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ) 

 

 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ___________________ is the person who 

appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that ____ signed this instrument, on oath stated that ____ 

was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the _______________ of 

______________________, a _________________ limited liability company, to be the free and voluntary act 

of such limited liability company for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

 

 DATED:  _________________ 

       

(Signature) 

 

       

(Please print name legibly) 

83



                                         

14 
 

 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

 

________________________________________,  

 

residing at ______     

 

My commission expires      

TENANT NOTARY (LIMITED PARTNERSHIP) 

 

STATE OF ) 

 ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ) 

 

 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that _____________________ is the person who 

appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that ______ signed this instrument as the 

__________________________ of _________________________________, a _____________________ 

Limited Partnership, and on oath acknowledged it to be the free and voluntary act of such Limited Partnership 

for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument, and on oath stated that _____ was authorized to execute 

this instrument on behalf of such Limited Partnership. 

 

 DATED: _________________ 

 

       

(Signature) 

 

       

(Please print name legibly) 

 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 

________________________________________,  

 

residing at _____     

 

My commission expires     

 

TENANT NOTARY (INDIVIDUAL) 

 

STATE OF ) 

 ) ss. 

COUNTY OF ) 

 

 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that _____________________ is the person who 

appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that ______ signed this instrument and on oath 

acknowledged it to be _____ free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 

 

 DATED: _________________ 

 

       

(Signature) 

 

       

(Please print name legibly) 

 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 

________________________________________,  

 

residing at _____     

 

My commission expires     

 

84



                                         

15 
 

RIDER ONE 

EMISSIONS; STORAGE, USE AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE 

 
a.   Emissions.  Lessee shall not (i) discharge, emit or permit to be discharged or emitted, any liquid, solid 

or gaseous matter, or any combination thereof, into the atmosphere, the ground or any body of water, 

which does or may pollute or contaminate the same, or does or may adversely affect the health or safety 

of persons, or the use or enjoyment of the Premises; nor (ii) transmit, receive or permit to be transmitted 

or received, any electromagnetic, microwave or other radiation in, on or about the Premises. 

 

b.   Storage.  If, with or without violation of this Lease, Lessee possesses at the Premises any matter 

described in Section A above or any Hazardous Substances (as defined below), Lessee shall store the 

same in appropriate leak proof containers and/or areas which comply with all laws and all prudent 

practices. 

 

c.   Disposal of Waste.  Lessee shall not keep any trash, garbage, waste or other refuse on the Premises 

except in sanitary containers and shall regularly and frequently remove same from the Premises.  Lessee 

shall keep all such containers in a clean and sanitary condition.  Lessee shall properly dispose of all 

sanitary sewage and shall not use the sewage system for the disposal of anything except sanitary sewage, 

nor in excess of capacity.  Lessee shall not cause any obstruction in the sewage disposal system. 

 

d.   Compliance of Law.  Notwithstanding any other provision in the Lease to the contrary, Lessee shall 

comply with all Laws in complying with its obligations under this Lease, and in particular, Laws relating 

to the storage, use and disposal of Hazardous Substances (as defined below). 

 

e.   Indemnification for Breach.  Lessee shall defend, indemnify and hold Lessor, the Project and the 

holder of a trust deed or mortgage on the Project harmless from any loss, claim, liability or expense, 

including, without limitation, attorneys fees and costs, at trial and/or on appeal and review, arising out 

of or in connection with its failure to observe or comply with the provisions of this Rider.  This 

indemnity shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the term of the Lease or the termination 

of Lessee’s right of possession and be fully enforceable thereafter. 

 

f.   Indemnification Regarding Hazardous Substances.  In addition to the indemnity obligations 

contained elsewhere herein, Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessor, the Premises, the 

Project, and the holder of a trust deed or mortgage on the Project, from and against all claims, losses, 

damages, monitoring costs, response costs, liabilities, and other costs expenses caused by, arising out 

of, or in connection with, the generation, release, handling, storage, discharge, transportation, deposit 

or disposal in, on, under or about the Premises by Lessee or any of Lessee’s agents of the following 

(collectively referred to as “Hazardous Substances”):  hazardous materials, hazardous substances, toxic 

wastes, toxic substances, pollutants, petroleum products, underground tanks, oils, pollution, asbestos, 

PCB’s, radioactive materials, or contaminants, as those terms are commonly used or as defined by 

federal, state, and/or local law or regulation related to protection of health or the environment as any of 

same may be amended from time to time, and/or by any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.  

Such damages, costs, liability and expenses shall include such as are claimed by any regulating and/or 

administering agency, any ground lessor or master lessor of the Project, the holder of any Mortgage or 

Deed of Trust on the Project, and/or any successor of the Lessor named herein.  This indemnity shall 

include (i) claims of third parties, including governmental agencies, for damages, fines, penalties, 

response costs, monitoring costs, injunctive or other relief; (ii) the costs, expenses or losses resulting 

from any injunctive relief, including preliminary or temporary injunctive relief; (iii) the expenses, 

including fees of attorneys and experts, of report the existence of Hazardous Substances to an agency 

of the State of which the Premises is located or of the United States as required by applicable laws and 

regulations; and (iv) any and all expenses or obligations, including attorney’s fees, incurred at, before 

and after any administrational proceeding, trial, appeal and review.  This indemnity shall survive the 

expiration or earlier termination of the term of the Lease or the termination of Lessee’s right of 

possession and shall remain fully enforceable thereafter. 

 

g.   Information.  Lessee shall give prior written notice to Lessor of any use, whether incidental or 

otherwise, of Hazardous Substances on the Premises, and shall immediately deliver to Lessor a copy of 

any notice of any violation of any Law with respect to such use.  Lessee shall also provide to Lessor, 

upon request, with any and all information regarding Hazardous Substances in the Premises, including 

contemporaneous copies of all filings and reports to governmental entities, and any other information 

requested by Lessor.  In the event of any accident, spill or other incident involving Hazardous 

Substances, Lessee shall immediately report the same to Lessor and supply Lessor with all information 

and reports with respect to the same.  All information described herein shall be provided to Lessor 

regardless of any claim by Lessee that it is confidential or privileged. 

85



                                         

16 
 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LAND 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

86



                                         

17 
 

EXHIBIT B 

SITE PLAN 

 

87



                                         

18 
 

EXHIBIT C 

FLOOR AND SPACE PLAN OF PREMISES 
 

 

 

  

88



                                         

19 
 

 EXHIBIT D 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 

 

1. Any directory provided by Lessor for the building will be for the display of the name and location of 

tenants, and Lessor reserves the right to exclude any other names. 

2. Lessee shall not place any new locks or re-key any existing locks on any doors of the Premises, or 

change any plumbing or wiring without the prior written consent of Lessor.  All keys shall be obtained 

from Lessor and Lessee shall not, from any other source, duplicate keys.  Lessee, upon termination 

of the tenancy, shall deliver to Lessor all keys which have been furnished, or shall pay Lessor the cost 

of changing the lock(s) opened by any lost key(s) if Lessor deems it necessary to make such change.  

Lessor, its employees and agents may retain a passkey to the Premises. 

3. The common area sidewalks, halls, passages, exits, entrances, elevators and stairways shall not be 

obstructed by Lessee or used for any purpose, including storage or placement of trash, other than for 

ingress to and egress from the Premises.  The halls, passages, exits, entrances, elevators, stairways, 

balconies and roof are not for the use of the general public and Lessor shall in all cases retain the right 

to control and prevent access thereto by all persons whose presence, in the judgment of Lessor, shall 

be prejudicial to the safety, character, reputation and interests of the Building and its tenants, provided 

that nothing herein contained shall be construed to prevent such access to persons with whom Lessee 

normally deals in the ordinary course of Lessee’s business, unless such persons are engaged in illegal 

activities, intoxicated or violate any of these Rules and Regulations.  Lessee, Lessee’s employees or 

invitees shall not go upon the roof of the Building.  

4. Lessee shall not make or permit any use of the Premises which may emit noise, odor or vibrations 

from the Premises which are objectionable to Lessor or other occupants of the Building.  Lessee shall 

not use or permit any part of its Premises to be used for lodging or sleeping. 

 

5. The toilet rooms, urinals, washbowls and other apparatus shall not be used for any purpose other 

than that for which they were constructed and no foreign substance of any kind whatsoever shall 

be thrown therein and the expense of any breakage, stoppage or damage resulting from the violation 

of this rule shall be borne by the Lessee who, or whose employees or invitees, shall have caused it.  

6. Lessee shall not use or keep in the Premises or the building, any kerosene, gasoline or flammable 

or combustible fluid or materials, or use any method of heating or air conditioning other than 

supplied by Lessor. 

 

7. Lessee shall not do or permit to be done within the Premises anything which would unreasonably 

annoy or disturb or interfere with the rights of other tenants of the Building.  Lessee shall not solicit 

or canvass any occupant of the building. 

 

 8. Lessee shall not commit or permit to be committed any waste, damage or injury to the Premises or 

other premises within the Building, or common areas within and adjoining the Building.  Such waste, 

damage or injury shall be repaired at Lessee's own expense. 

 

9. Lessee shall not waste electricity or water and agrees to cooperate fully with Lessor to assure the most 

effective and economical use of utility services provided to the Building by Lessor.  

10. Lessee shall keep Lessor advised of the current telephone numbers of Lessee’s employees who may 

be contacted in emergency, i.e., fire, break-in, vandalism, etc.  If Lessor shall deem it necessary to 

respond to such emergency in Lessee’s behalf, Lessee shall pay all costs incurred for services ordered 

by Lessor to secure or otherwise protect the Premises and the contents thereof, including a premium 

charge for any time spent by Lessor’s employees in responding to such emergency.  

11. Lessee shall see that the doors of the Premises are closed and securely locked before leaving the 

Building and must observe strict care and caution that all water faucets or water apparatus are entirely 

shut off before Lessee’s employees leave the Premises, and that all electricity shall be shut off, so as 

to prevent waste or damage, and for any default or carelessness, Lessee shall make good all injuries 

sustained by Lessor, other tenants, or occupants of the Building.  

12. Lessee shall not place upon or install on, or beside, the windows, walls or exterior doors of the 

Premises or any part of the Premises visible from the exterior of the Premises any object including 

without limitation signs, symbols, canopies, awnings, window coverings or other advertising or 

decorative material, without obtaining the prior written consent of Lessor.  

13. Lessee shall not overload the floor of the Premises or mark, drive nails, screw, or drill into the 

partitions, woodwork or plaster, or in any way deface the Premises or any part thereof.  Lessee shall 

89



                                         

20 
 

not bore holes, cut or string wires, or lay floor tile, carpet or other floor covering in or around the 

Premises in any manner, except as approved in writing by Lessor.  The expense of repairing any 

damage resulting from a violation of this rule or removal of any floor covering shall be borne by the 

Lessee by whom, or by whose contractors, employees, or invitees, the damage shall have been caused.  

14. No vending machine or machines of any description shall be installed, maintained or operated upon 

the Premises without the written consent of Lessor. 

15. Lessee agrees that is shall comply with all fire, life safety, security and other regulatory policies and 

procedures that may be issued from time to time by Lessor. 

16. Without the written consent of Lessor, Lessee shall not use the name of the building in connection 

with or in promoting or advertising the business of Lessee, except as Lessee’s address. 

17. No furniture, freight, or equipment of any kind shall be brought into the Building without the consent 

of Lessor and all moving of the same into or out of the Building shall be done at such time and in 

such manner as Lessor shall designate.  Lessor shall have the right to prescribe the size and position 

of all safes and other heavy equipment brought into the Building.  Flooring under safes or other heavy 

objects must be reinforced or a means of proper weight distribution provided, at Lessee’s expense, if, 

in the opinion of the Lessor, such precautions are necessary.  Any damage done to the Building by 

moving or maintaining any such safe or other property shall be repaired at the expense of Lessee.  

There shall not be used in any space, or in the public halls of the Building, either by Lessee or others, 

any pallet jacks or hand trucks, except those equipped with rubber tires and side guards. 

18. Lessee shall not employ or permit access to any person(s) for the purpose of cleaning the Premises 

unless otherwise agreed to by Lessor.  Lessee shall not cause any unnecessary labor by reason of 

Lessee’s carelessness or indifference in the preservation of good order and cleanliness.  Lessor shall 

in no way be responsible to Lessee for any loss of property on the Premises, however occurring, or 

for any damage done to the effects of Lessee by the janitor or any other employee or any other person. 

19. If the Premises are equipped with heating facilities separate from those in the remainder of the 

building, Lessee shall keep the leased Premises at a temperature sufficient to prevent freezing of water 

in pipes and fixtures. 

20. Lessor reserves the right, by written notice to Lessee, to rescind, substitute, alter or waive any rule or 

regulation at any time prescribed for the building when, in Lessor’s judgment, it is necessary, 

desirable or proper for the best interest of the Building and its tenants. 

21. Lessee may not bring any animals into the building or Premises except for those that are utilized for 

service to the handicapped.  

 

90



                                         

21 
 

EXHIBIT E 

STANDARDS FOR UTILITIES AND SERVICES 

 
The following Standards for Utilities and Services are in effect.  Lessor reserves the right to adopt 

nondiscriminatory modifications and additions hereto. 

 

1.   Non-attended automatic elevator facilities Monday through Friday, except holidays, from 8 a.m. to 6 

p.m., and  have one elevator available at all other times. 

 

2.   Monday through Friday, except holidays, from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m., (and other times for the initial sum of 

$20.00 per hour, established from time to time by Lessor to reimburse Lessor for the actual costs 

incurred as a result of such use based upon electrical rates and the size of the premises), ventilate the 

Premises and furnish air conditioning or heating on such days and hours, when in the reasonable 

judgment of Lessor it may be required for the comfortable occupancy of the Premises.  Lessee agrees 

to cooperate fully at all times with Lessor, and to abide by all reasonable regulations and requirements 

which Lessor may prescribe for the proper function and protection of said air conditioning system.  

Lessee agrees not to connect any apparatus, device, conduit or pipe to the building chilled and hot water 

air conditioning supply lines.  Lessee further agrees that neither Lessee nor its, employees, agents, 

visitors, licensees or contractors shall at any time enter mechanical installations or facilities of the 

Building or adjust, tamper with, touch or otherwise in any manner affect said installations or facilities.  

The cost of maintenance and service calls to adjust and regulate the air conditioning system shall be 

charged to Lessee if the need for maintenance work results from either Lessee’s adjustment of room 

thermostats or Lessee’s failure to comply with its obligations under this section.  Such work shall be 

charged at hourly rates equal to then-current journeymen’s wages to air conditioning mechanics. 

 

3.   During the usual business hours on business days, electric current as required by the building standard 

office lighting and fractional horsepower office business machines in an amount not to exceed 3.5 watts 

per square foot.  Lessee agrees, should its electrical installation or electrical consumption be in excess 

of the aforesaid quantity or extend beyond normal business hours, to reimburse Lessor monthly for the 

measured consumption at the average cost per kilowatt hour charged to the building during the period.  

If a separate meter is not installed at Lessee’s cost, such excess costs will be established by an estimate 

agreed upon by Lessor and Lessee, and if the parties fail to agree, as established by an independent 

licensed engineer.  Lessee agrees not to use any apparatus or device in, or upon, or about the Premises 

which may in any way  increase the amount of such services usually furnished or supplied to said 

Premises, and Lessee further agrees not to connect any apparatus or devise with wires, conduits or pipes, 

or the other means by which such services are supplied, for the purpose of using additional or unusual 

amounts of such services without the prior written consent of Lessor.  Should Lessee use the same to 

excess, the refusal on the part of Lessee to pay upon demand of Lessor the amount established by Lessor 

for such excess charge shall constitute a breach of the obligation to pay rent under this Lease and shall 

entitle Lessor to the rights therein granted for such breach.  At all times Lessee’s use of electric current 

shall never exceed the capacity of the feeders to the building or the risers or wiring installation and 

Lessee shall not install or use or permit the installation or use of any unusually high weight or high 

electrical consumption computer or electronic data processing equipment in the Premises without the 

prior written consent of Lessor. 

 

4.   Provide janitor service to the Premises, provided the same are used exclusively as offices, and  are kept 

reasonably in order by Lessee, and if to be kept clean by Lessee, no one other than persons approved by 

Lessor shall be permitted to enter the Premises for such purposes.  If the Premises are not used 

exclusively as offices, they shall be kept clean and in order by Lessee, at Lessee’s expense, and to the 

satisfaction of Lessor, and by persons approved by Lessor.  Lessee shall pay to Lessor the cost of 

removal of any of Lessee’s refuse and rubbish to the extent that the same exceeds the refuse and rubbish 

usually attendant upon the use of the Premises as offices. 

 

 Lessor reserves the right to stop service of the elevator, plumbing, ventilation, air conditioning and 

electric systems, when necessary, by reason of accident or emergency or for repairs, alterations or 

improvements, in the judgment of Lessor desirable or necessary to be made, until said repairs, alterations 

or improvements, shall have been completed, and shall further have no responsibility or liability for 

failure to supply elevator facilities, plumbing, ventilation, air conditioning or electric service.  It is 

expressly understood and agreed that any covenants, express or implied, for Lessor to furnish any 

service for the benefit of Lessee shall not be deemed breached if Lessor is unable to furnish or perform 

the same by virtue of a strike or labor trouble or any other cause whatsoever beyond Lessor’s reasonable 

control. 

 

5.  Lessee shall not use or install in the Premises any heat generating equipment, except as specifically 

authorized herein, or installed pursuant to the Work Letter Agreement, without Lessor’s prior written 

consent.  The inclusion of this restriction is to ensure that the HVAC system is adequate to service the 

Building and the various uses of tenants that occupy the Building. 

91



                                         

22 
 

EXHIBIT F  

WORK LETTER AGREEMENT 

 

THIS WORK LETTER AGREEMENT (this “Work Letter Agreement”) is entered into as of the __ day of 

______2022, by and between BCC PUYALLUP, LLC (“Lessor”), a Washington limited liability company, 

and _____ (“Lessee”), a Washington corporation. 

 

 

A. Concurrently with the execution of this Work Letter Agreement, Lessor and Lessee have entered 

into a Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) covering certain premises (the “Premises”), as depicted in the Floor 

Plan attached to the Lease as Exhibit c and more specifically specified and defined in the Lease.  Any and 

all defined terms, not specifically defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Lease as if 

specifically included and set forth in this Work Letter Agreement. 

 

B. This Work Letter Agreement has been executed for the purpose of describing and providing the 

requirements, standards, and specifications and a timetable for Lessor’s performance of the work for the 

Premises to render it suitable for the use and occupancy of Lessee. 
 

1.    Lessor shall provide Lessee with a Lessee Improvement Allowance of up to Nine Hundred Seventy-Seven Thousand 

Eight Hundred Fifty and No/100 dollars ($977,850.00) representing $50 per square foot of space within the 

Premises (which amount includes Washington State sales Tax, architectural, engineering, and construction 

management fees and permits) towards the construction of the Lessee’s initial Improvements to the leased premises 

(the “Lessee Improvement Allowance”).  If the contract price to complete the Lessee Improvements exceeds the 

Lessee Improvement Allowance (a “shortfall”) or if Lessee shall request any change in the Construction Drawings, 

Lessor shall promptly notify Lessee in writing of the additional costs of construction of the Lessee Improvements 

required by such shortfall or such change, and Lessee shall prior to the Commencement of work either (i) deliver a 

check made payable to Lessor in the amount of the authorized excess costs, or (ii) cause the Construction Drawings 

to be redesigned (subject to all the terms of this Agreement) to reduce the cost of the Lessee Improvements to an 

amount within the limits of the Lessee Improvement Allowance; or (iii) agree to increase the Base Rent by the 

amount calculated to amortize the shortfall at the rate of 8.125% per annum over the initial term of the Lease..  

 

2.    Lessor shall complete the improvements to the Premises in a good and workmanlike manner, as described and 

delineated in the space plan, attached hereto and designated “Lessee Improvements”. As part of the Lessee 

Improvement Allowance Lessee shall cause its architect to prepare final drawings (including architectural, 

mechanical, electrical and structural (if any) hereafter referred to as “Construction Drawings”) for the Lessee 

Improvements that are consistent with and are logical evolution of the space plans.  As soon as such Construction 

Drawings are completed, Lessee shall deliver the same to Lessor for approval.  Lessor shall promptly review and 

approve the Construction Drawings within two (2) days after the date of receipt thereof and shall initial two (2) 

copies of the Construction Drawings as indication of its approval thereof.  Lessor’s approval of the Construction 

Drawings shall constitute Lessee’s authorization to complete the Lessee Improvements in accordance with such 

Construction Drawings. If Lessee shall make any change in the Construction Drawings, Lessee shall promptly notify 

Lessor in writing of the change and Lessor shall have two (2) days to approve or reject the requested change. 

3.    Lessee is solely responsible for the suitability of the design and function of the Lessee Improvements for Lessee’s 

needs and business.  Lessee shall also be responsible for procuring any trade fixtures, equipment, furniture, 

furnishings, telephone equipment or other personal property (collectively, “Personal Property”) to be used in the 

Premises by Lessee, and the cost of such Personal Property shall be paid by Lessee.    Lessor shall be responsible for 

the assembly (if required) and the installation of the Personal Property at Lessee sole cost and expense.. Lessee shall 

provide evidence to Lessor that it has ordered the Personal Property as soon as practical following execution of the 

Lease. 

4.    If the completion of the Lessee Improvements in the Premises is delayed (i) at the request of Lessee, (ii) by Lessee’s 

failure to comply with the foregoing provisions, (iii) by changes in the work requested (whether or not Lessee 

authorizes Lessor to proceed therewith) or ordered by Lessee or by extra work ordered by Lessee, or (iv) because 

Lessee chooses to have additional work performed by Lessor (each, a “Lease Delay”), then Lessee shall be 

responsible for all costs and expenses occasioned by such delays,  including, without limitation, any costs and 

expenses attributable to increases in labor or materials, and there shall be no delay in the commencement of Lessee’s 

obligation to pay rent if the completion of the Lessee Improvements is delayed as a result of the foregoing. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that delay of installation of the Personal Property beyond the date that 

Lessor has completed the Lessee Improvements results from a delay of delivery of the Personal Property plus 

allowing adequate time for assembly and installation, for any reason not within Lessor’s  control, then at Lessee’s 

request, the Commencement Date will be delayed to the date of completion of all work related to the Personal 

Property and the Base Rent will be increased  by the amount calculated to amortize the amount of Base Rent that 

would have been payable from the date the Lessee Improvements were completed until the date that the Personal 

Property has been installed at the rate of 8.125% per annum over the initial term of the Lease.  

5.    Lessee may, with Lessor’s written consent, enter the Premises two weeks prior to the Commencement Date solely 

for the purpose of installing Lessee’s Personal Property and equipment as long as such entry does not interfere with 

the orderly construction and completion of the Premises.  Lessee shall notify Lessor of its desired time(s) of entry 

and shall submit for Lessor’s approval the scope of the work to be performed and the name(s) of the contractor(s) 

who will perform such work.  Lessee hereby indemnifies and agrees to protect, defend and hold Lessor, any 

mortgagee, ground lessor or beneficiary of a mortgage, ground lease or deed of trust related to the Premises or the 

Building harmless from and against any and all suits, claims, actions, losses, costs or expenses (including claims for 

92



                                         

23 
 

worker’s compensation) for any nature whatsoever, together with reasonable attorney fees for counsel of Lessor’s 

choice, arising out of or in connection with the installation of Lessee’s Personal Property or equipment (including, 

but not limited to, claims for breach of warranty, personal injury or property damage). 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

93



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date    June 13, 2022 

Item Title:    Human Resources Division Report 

Attachments:     

Submitted by:   Suzi Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
Recruitment 

 Promotions 
o Facilities Lead – 5.10.2022 

 BJ Butler (currently our Facilities Maintenance Technician) has been promoted to 
Facilities Lead.  
 

o Captain - Logistics – 06.06.2022 
 After completion of a competitive process, we are excited to let you know that Don 

Hodges has been promoted to the Captain – Logistics positions, which was 
vacated on April 1st by the retirement of Mark Guenthner.   
 

o Executive Assistant – 06.27.2022 
 We are pleased to announce that Ariel Paramapoonya (currently the Support 

Specialist supporting the Deputy Chiefs) has been promoted to Executive 
Assistant, and will be moving into the role upon Dianne Porter’s retirement.  

 

 New Hires 
o Technical Support Specialist – 5.16.2022 

 Zackary Deyette has joined the IT Consortium team as the newest Technical 
Support Specialist, which now has the consortium fully staffed.  
 

o Facilities Maintenance Technician – 06.06.2022 
 We welcome Jose Ramirez as our new Facilities Maintenance Technician.   

 

 Current Recruitments 
o Operations Analyst 

 After an external recruitment was completed, we have invited 13 candidates to the 
next step in the recruitment process, and plan to have our oral board and 
assessment center components on June 22nd.   

 

94



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

o Purchasing Analyst 
 We currently have this new position posted for internal (OPEIU) members through 

June 8th.  If we do not receive three (3) internal applicants, we will then proceed to 
move to posting externally. 

 
o Academy 22-2 

 The start date is September 6th   
 13 Candidates have completed the final step (physical/drug screenings) 
 For the second round of hiring to “fill out” this academy, we are on track. 

 11 candidates were invited to Chief’s Interviews, 9 of which passed 

 We are on track with the balance of the process 
o Psychological and Physical Assessments – June/early July 

 

 Upcoming Recruitments/Other Staffing work 
o Academy 23-1 

 
 

Negotiations 

 Negotiations have been concluded with the Firefighters and Chiefs groups, we are currently 
working on the plan for implementing all of the changes  

 Local 726 Non-Uniformed – this contract expired on December 31, 2021.  We have our first 
bargaining session set for June 14th.   

 The OPEIU contract will expire on December 31st.  We have our first bargaining session set for 
July 7th.   
   
 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
N/A 

95



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 06-13-2022 

Item Title: Division Update - Training 

Attachments: N/A 

Submitted by: W. Juarez 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

   
 

SUMMARY:     

 

1. June training objectives: 

a. Known Rescue  

b. Haz Mat Ops  

c. Water Rescue Awareness 

d. Fire Ground Operations 

2. The Training Division is scheduling Nash Consulting for an 8 hour training session for all 

personnel. 

3. The Training Division is updating Ladder Truck credential for bid personnel. 

4. Recruit class 22-1 graduated 23 recruits on May 27th. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

 

 

96



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  06/13/2022 

Item Title:  Division Update – Field Operations 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by:  R. Kent 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
1.   Seasonal Hydrant workers have been hired and will start on the annual Hydrant maintenance 

program on 6/21. 
 
2. 9 new Officers of various ranks have been and/or are being Field Promoted during the Month of 

June: 
 BC Ray Escobedo 
 BC Brian Ferrier 
 Captain Noah Tchobanoff 
 Captain Tyler Brown 
 Lieutenant Brett Martinson 
 Lieutenant Jason Simmons 
 Lieutenant Kevin Hucke 
 Lieutenant Josh Luke 
 EMS Lieutenant Kim Stoltenberg  
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 

97



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 06/13/2022 

Item Title: Division Update - EMS 

Attachments: N/A 

Submitted by: AC Bouchard 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:   
 

1) June is recertification month for CPFR.  All records have been submitted to Pierce 
County EMS.  A huge thank you for the efforts of the Training Division and the EMS 
Division.   
 

2) Paramedic school is beginning (prerequisites) and books have been ordered. 
 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 

98



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 06/13/2022 

Item Title:  Section Update - Operations 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by E. Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Dynamix, our Standards of Cover consultant, will be on site this month completing their field 

assessment. 
 
2. Intterra Analytics is operational.  The dashboards have been shared with a narrow group 

while we continue to refine the data stream. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 

99



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: June 13, 2022 

Item Title:  Fire Chief’s Report   

Attachments:  None 

Submitted by: Chief Morrow   
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
  
Washington Fire Chief’s Conference 
 
In late May I had the opportunity to represent the District at the Washington Fire Chief’s 
Conference held in Wenatchee. The conference was full of quality content and provided 
the opportunity to expand my professional network. 
 
The venue also provided an opportunity for the continued discussion regarding the 
Training Consortium. Several times members from West Pierce, East Pierce, Orting 
Valley, Graham, and Central Pierce met. The group made substantial progress on a 
draft budget and elements of the draft ILA.  
 
  
 

100



1

Dianne Porter

From: Tanya Robacker
Sent: Tuesday, May 24, 2022 8:12 AM
To: Dennis Lawson; Suzi Washo; Stephanie Glass; Russ Karns; Eric Stueve; Dianne Porter
Cc: Jessica Resop
Subject: RE: Thanks

Thank you so much for your kind words, which couldn’t be more accurate.  We definitely couldn’t have a 
better person in this position, her skill, dedication and commitment are unrivaled. 
 
Good luck on your next endeavors! 
Tanya  
 
Tanya Robacker | Finance Director 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
 253.538.6416|trobacker@centralpiercefire.org 
 
“Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve” 
 

From: Dennis Lawson <DLawson@Centralpiercefire.org>  
Sent: Monday, May 23, 2022 12:47 PM 
To: Tanya Robacker <TRobacker@Centralpiercefire.org>; Suzi Washo <swasho@centralpiercefire.org>; Stephanie Glass 
<Sglass@centralpiercefire.org>; Russ Karns <RKarns@Centralpiercefire.org>; Eric Stueve 
<EStueve@centralpiercefire.org>; Dianne Porter <DPorter@Centralpiercefire.org> 
Cc: Jessica Resop <JResop@Centralpiercefire.org> 
Subject: Thanks 
 
I would like to formally acknowledge and thank Jessica Resop for her work associated with payroll. Jessica has been 
tasked to work through a difficult process and has done so in a professional manner. She has been very open and 
approachable, truly representing the good in our organization.  
She deserves our appreciation.   
 
Dennis J. Lawson 
Battalion Chief 
C‐Shift  61 
 

101



M ission:  Effective ly respond, continuou sly improve,  compassio n atel y serve  

 

 

 

 
 
 
May 23rd 2022 

 

To Whom it may concern, 

I would like to take a moment to recognize Lieutenant Dave Verellen, and Firefighters Mike Johnson, 

Ryan Orseth, Matt Pheiffer and Logan Lambert for their recent hose drill. 

The instructors all did a fantastic job of demonstrating new techniques and patiently coaching the 

students along the way. This is obviously expected for a class instructor to do, but I was moved to 

recognize their efforts due to the massive amount of dedication to the craft each of these men 

demonstrate on a daily basis. Their sole desire is to improve our firefighters’ skills and save more lives 

and property. 

There isn’t any bravado, show-boating or demonstrations of superiority. They all show patience and 

humility, even giving examples of their own past mistakes. Anytime a class is given by someone who 

lives for the subject, it enhances the learning experience and that’s exactly what I received today.  

Sincerely, 

 

Captain Matt Santos 

Station 61 C Shift  

    

 

 

 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

17520 – 22nd Ave. E., Tacoma, WA  98445 
(253) 538-6400   (253) 276-6770 Fax 

www.centralpiercefire.org 

 

102

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/


1

Dianne Porter

Subject:  

From: Shelley Rhone  
Sent: Monday, June 6, 2022 1:22 PM 
To: Sean Irwin <SIrwin@centralpiercefire.org> 
Cc: Shaun Cuthbert <SCuthbert@Centralpiercefire.org>; Cara Olden <COlden@Centralpiercefire.org>; Jeff Cable 
<JCable@centralpiercefire.org> 
Subject: a citizen's point of view 
 
Sean, 
I saw Engine 72 on scene at Costco in Puyallup on Saturday, June 4th.  
I saw you, Shaun Cuthbert, and Cara Olden tending to a sick looking teenage girl near the exit area.  The scene was calm, 
organized, and you were all 3 working like you’d been on thousands of calls together; the ultimate professionals. 
I could tell you had only arrived moments before I saw you. 
When I left Costco less that ten minutes later, I noticed the scene was completely secured, with a storage cabinet and 
some shopping carts strategically placed to allow for pt dignity and privacy.  
I can’t begin to tell you how impressed I am. The consideration and respect shown for this young patient, shielding her 
from the stares of bystanders, really struck home with me.  
To you it may have been only one more BLS call in a 24 shift, conducted in the professional manner that exemplifies 
CPFR.  To me, it was a source of great pride to know I work with the best of the best. 
Thank you for what you do, it is appreciated by so many. It’s the little things that make such a difference.  
 
I’ve already told this story a half dozen times, including to Chief Morrow. Figured I should tell the people who were there 
;‐) 
Shelley 
 
Shelley Rhone, RN BSN 
C.A.R.E.S. Program Manager 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Desk 253‐538‐6544 
Mobile 253‐732‐2168 
srhone@centralpiercefire.org 
 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
“Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve” 

www.CentralPierceFire.org 
 

Connect with us! 

 
 
 

103


	1 - 2022-06-13 Board Agenda DRAFT
	5B - 2022-05-23 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5C - 2022_06_13 Warrant Approval
	8A1 - AIS LOGISTICS
	8A2 - ILA_Final v2022
	8B1 - Benaroya Lease AIS
	8B2 - Benaroya Lease Agreement
	9A - 06.13.2022   HR Report
	9A - AIS Training 6.13.22
	9C - Operations AIS 6-13-2022
	9D - EMS AIS June 2022
	9E - OPSEC AIS 6.13.22
	9F - FC Report AIS 6.13.22
	10A1 - Corres1
	10A2 - Corres2
	10A3 - Corres3



